

~~Date: 2025-06-17~~

ISO/~~DIS~~**FDIS** 9241-171:~~2025(en)~~

ISO/TC-159/SC-4/~~WG-5~~

Secretariat: ~~BIS~~**BSI**

Date:

Ergonomics of human-system interaction —

Part 171: ~~Guidance on software~~  
**Software** accessibility

iTeh Standards

(<https://standards.iteh.ai>)

Document Preview

ISO/FDIS 9241-171

<https://standards.iteh.ai/catalog/standards/iso/2c880312-6cac-4eab-aab3-7eb390c8c09a/iso-fdis-9241-171>

Edited DIS - MUST BE USED FOR FINAL DRAFT

**ISO/FDIS 9241-171:2025(en)**

**© ISO 2025**

All rights reserved. Unless otherwise specified, or required in the context of its implementation, no part of this publication may be reproduced or utilized otherwise in any form or by any means, electronic or mechanical, including photocopying, or posting on the internet or an intranet, without prior written permission. Permission can be requested from either ISO at the address below or ISO's member body in the country of the requester.

ISO copyright office

CP 401 • Ch. de Blandonnet 8 • CP 401

CH-1214 Vernier, Geneva, Switzerland

Tel-Phone: + 41 22 749 01 11

Fax: + 41 22 749 09 47

E-mail: [copyright@iso.org](mailto:copyright@iso.org)

Website: [www.iso.org](http://www.iso.org)

Published in Switzerland

**iTeh Standards  
(<https://standards.itih.ai>)  
Document Preview**

ISO/FDIS 9241-171

<https://standards.itih.ai/catalog/standards/iso/2c880312-6cac-4eab-aab3-7eb390c8c09a/iso-fdis-9241-171>

**Contents—Page**

Foreword.....	vi
Introduction.....	viii
1 Scope.....	1
2 Normative references .....	1
3 Terms and definitions.....	1
3.1 Major accessibility related concepts .....	1
3.2 Concepts relating to interaction .....	3
3.3 Concepts relating to the user interface .....	4
3.4 Concepts relating to individualization .....	7
3.5 Concepts relating to accessibility features.....	7
4 Conventions.....	15
5 Conformance .....	15
6 Structure and application of this document .....	16
6.1 External principles and guidance.....	16
6.2 Accessibility goals of ISO/IEC Guide 71 .....	17
6.3 Organization of guidance in this document .....	18
6.4 Achieving accessibility.....	18
7 Goal 1: Achieving suitability for the widest range of users' needs .....	19
7.1 To recognize that users are included as system users within diverse contexts.....	19
7.2 To have accessible support for using the system .....	19
7.3 To have the system accessible to an individual with combinations of needs .....	20
8 Goal 2: Achieving conformity with user expectations needs.....	21
8.1 To not be surprised by the results of interactions with the system.....	21
8.2 To apply personal knowledge and experience to interact successfully with the system... 23	
8.3 To provide user assistance for knowledge needed to interact with the system .....	23
8.4 To provide immediate and easily accessible help or further instructions, where such help can be provided by the system .....	23
9 Goal 3: Achieving support for individualization needs .....	24
9.1 To be provided with the way of interacting with a system that best works for them .....	24
9.2 To choose between the available input and output modalities and their configuration without requiring restart of the system.....	24
9.3 To have simultaneous use of alternate interaction modalities .....	24
9.4 To be provided with information on available options for interacting with a system on which to base a choice of interaction methods .....	25
9.5 To be provided with an accessible means to choose individualization features .....	25
9.6 To have individualization features maintained for future uses of the system, until changed by the user .....	28
9.7 To provide pre-defined preference profiles .....	29
9.8 To take or give up control of functions that can be performed by either the user or the system .....	29
9.9 To have the option to use the system with a minimum of setup or configuration .....	29
9.10 To customize important functionality: a new user accessibility need (UAN) .....	29
10 Goal 4: Achieving approachability needs.....	37
10.1 To have the system free from any physical barriers.....	37
10.2 To have the system free from any psychological barriers .....	37
10.3 To have the system maintain the user's attention.....	37
10.4 To have interaction options clearly presented.....	38

10.5	To have appropriate levels of privacy and security .....	38
10.6	To avoid patterns that cause psychological or physical discomfort or disturbance .....	38
10.7	To use the system remotely as well as directly.....	38
10.8	To have the system free from environmental barriers .....	39
11	Goal 5: Achieving perceivability needs.....	39
11.1	To use a specific sensory modality (or a set of specific modalities) to perceive information .....	39
11.2	To have presentation attributes of a modality that match an individual's needs .....	41
11.3	To distinguish among the different components of information that are being presented	44
11.4	To perceive information regardless of environmental or other conditions that might interfere .....	45
11.5	To not have one's senses overloaded .....	46
11.6	To have attention drawn to critically important information in the appropriate modality, form, and language.....	47
12	Goal 6: Achieving understandability needs .....	47
12.1	To obtain information on the system and its components and functionalities .....	47
12.2	To understand information presented by the system .....	53
12.3	To have information that supports an individual's cognitive needs .....	57
12.4	To have the steps for completing tasks optimized to match an individual's needs and clearly explained .....	59
12.5	To have cues to support the individual in completing tasks .....	60
12.6	To have feedback showing the results of actions .....	61
12.7	To have sufficient time to interact with the system .....	61
12.8	To access support when needed .....	62
13	Goal 7: Achieving controllability needs.....	62
13.1	To use a specific sensory modality (or a set of specific sensory modalities) for inputs to the system .....	62
13.2	To control attributes of an input or interaction modality to match an individual's needs	64
13.3	To use a specific interaction method to provide inputs to the system.....	64
13.4	To perform the task using specific types of action .....	67
13.5	To perform supporting and maintenance tasks related to the use of the system that other users are expected to undertake .....	75
13.6	To control the environment (to the extent possible) to prevent interference with performing the task .....	75
13.7	To access the controls that allow them to turn on and adjust the built-in accessibility features.....	76
13.8	To have a suitable level of autonomy .....	77
14	Goal 8: Usability .....	77
14.1	To be provided a means to successfully accomplish tasks.....	77
14.2	To avoid making mistakes in completing tasks .....	77
14.3	To complete tasks in an efficient manner relative to one's own abilities .....	77
14.4	To perform tasks with a minimum of physical exertion .....	77
14.5	To perform tasks with a minimum of cognitive exertion .....	77
14.6	To operate the system without becoming fatigued .....	78
14.7	To complete tasks within the available time .....	78
14.8	To be satisfied with the outcome of interacting with the system .....	78
14.9	To have comparable satisfaction that the system is worth using to that of other users ....	78
15	Goal 9: Error tolerance .....	79

15.1	To have confidence that using the system will be free from negative consequences or unacceptable risks .....	79
15.2	To explore a system without unintentionally activating components or their functionalities.....	79
15.3	To accomplish tasks in spite of the occurrence of errors.....	79
15.4	To detect when errors have been made.....	79
15.5	To recover from errors made from interacting with the system .....	80
15.6	To reset a system to an earlier or original condition as a means of responding to errors	80
15.7	To avoid errors by making negative consequences be obvious, easy to avoid, and difficult to trigger.....	80
16	Goal 10: Equitable use.....	81
16.1	To use a system in a manner that is as similar as possible to other users .....	81
16.2	To use a system in a manner that is equivalent to that of other users, even if the manner of use is different .....	81
16.3	To have available alternate ways of interacting with a system that match a user's needs	81
17	Goal 11: Compatibility with other systems .....	82
17.1	To use their own assistive products or assistive technology (AT) to interact with all the functionalities of the system.....	82
17.2	To have the interaction between the system and assistive technology be without interference.....	86
17.3	To have specific accessibility functions available at all times, without disruption .....	87
Annex A (informative)	W3C web content accessibility guidelines (WCAG) 2.2 success criteria ..	88
Annex B (informative)	W3C user agent accessibility guidelines (UAAG) 2.0 .....	92
Annex C (informative)	Mapping of ISO 9241-171:2008 to this document .....	98
Annex D (informative)	Access features .....	105
Bibliography .....		114

## Foreword

ISO (the International Organization for Standardization) is a worldwide federation of national standards bodies (ISO member bodies). The work of preparing International Standards is normally carried out through ISO technical committees. Each member body interested in a subject for which a technical committee has been established has the right to be represented on that committee. International organizations, governmental and non-governmental, in liaison with ISO, also take part in the work. ISO collaborates closely with the International Electrotechnical Commission (IEC) on all matters of electrotechnical standardization.

The procedures used to develop this document and those intended for its further maintenance are described in the ISO/IEC Directives, Part 1. In particular, the different approval criteria needed for the different types of ISO document should be noted. This document was drafted in accordance with the editorial rules of the ISO/IEC Directives, Part 2 (see [www.iso.org/directives](http://www.iso.org/directives)).

ISO draws attention to the possibility that the implementation of this document may involve the use of (a) patent(s). ISO takes no position concerning the evidence, validity or applicability of any claimed patent rights in respect thereof. As of the date of publication of this document, ISO ~~had not~~ received notice of (a) patent(s) which may be required to implement this document. However, implementers are cautioned that this may not represent the latest information, which may be obtained from the patent database available at [www.iso.org/patents](http://www.iso.org/patents). ISO shall not be held responsible for identifying any or all such patent rights.

Any trade name used in this document is information given for the convenience of users and does not constitute an endorsement.

For an explanation of the voluntary nature of standards, the meaning of ISO specific terms and expressions related to conformity assessment, as well as information about ISO's adherence to the World Trade Organization (WTO) principles in the Technical Barriers to Trade (TBT), see [www.iso.org/iso/foreword.html](http://www.iso.org/iso/foreword.html).

This document was prepared by Technical Committee ISO/TC 159, *Ergonomics*, Subcommittee SC 4, *Ergonomics of human-system interaction*, in collaboration with the European Committee for Standardization (CEN) Technical Committee CEN/TC 122, *Ergonomics*, in accordance with the Agreement on technical cooperation between ISO and CEN (Vienna Agreement).

This second edition cancels and replaces the first edition (ISO 9241-171:2008), which has been technically revised.

The main changes are as follows:

- ~~— The alignment to the~~ user accessibility needs in ISO/IEC 29138-1 ~~have been used to structure guidance in clauses 7–17;~~
- ~~— References in~~ [Clauses 7](#) to [17](#) ~~existing;~~
- ~~— addition of references to~~ accessibility-related standards ~~in~~ [Clauses 7](#) to [17](#) ~~have been added to clauses 7–17;~~
- ~~— Annexes~~ [addition of annexes](#) for mapping this document to other documents containing accessibility-related guidance ~~have been added in~~ [Annexes A](#) to [C](#) ~~Annex A–C;~~

A list of all parts in the ISO 9241 series can be found on the ISO website.

ISO/~~DIS~~FDIS 9241-171:2025(en)

Any feedback or questions on this document should be directed to the user's national standards body. A complete listing of these bodies can be found at [www.iso.org/members.html](http://www.iso.org/members.html) and [www.iec.ch/national-committees](http://www.iec.ch/national-committees).

Field Code Changed

# iTeh Standards (<https://standards.iteh.ai>) Document Preview

ISO/FDIS 9241-171

<https://standards.iteh.ai/catalog/standards/iso/2c880312-6cac-4eab-aab3-7eb390c8c09a/iso-fdis-9241-171>

© ISO 2025 – All rights reserved

vii  
Edited DIS - MUST BE USED FOR FINAL DRAFT